
 For more information on the Modern.gov paperless app, contact Democratic 
Services 
 

 
 

Merton Council 

Health and Wellbeing Board - Community 
sub-group  Agenda 
 
Membership 

Rob Clarke 
Mark Creelman 
Dave Curtis 
Abi Fafolu 
Dr Vasa Gnanapragam 
Rebecca Lanning (Chair) 
Martin Miranda 
Oonagh Moulton 
Kalu Obuka 
Mohan Sekeram 
Eleanor Stringer 
Dr Dagmar Zeuner 
  
 
Date: Tuesday 1 March 2022  

Time:   5.00 pm 

Venue:   Zoom 

This is a public meeting and can be viewed by following this link 
https://www.youtube.com/user/MertonCouncil 
 
Electronic Agendas, Reports and Minutes 
 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on 
our 
website. To access this, click https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-
democracy  
and search for the relevant committee and meeting date. 
 
Agendas can also be viewed on the Mod.gov paperless app for iPads, Android and 
Windows devices. 
 
For more information about the agenda please contact 
 
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3356 
 
 
All Press contacts: communications@merton.gov.uk or 020 8545 3181 

https://www.youtube.com/user/MertonCouncil
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy
mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk
mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk


Health and Wellbeing Board - Community sub-group  
Agenda 

1 March 2022  

1  Apologies for Absence   

2  Declaration of pecuniary interest   

3  Minutes of the previous meeting 14th December  1 - 4 

4  COVID-19 SAR Update   

5  Future of HWBB Community Subgroup  5 - 8 

6  Vaccination Programme   

7  Post COVID Syndrome   

 

Note on declarations of interest 

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at 
the meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during 
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  For 
further advice please speak with the Managing Director, South London Legal Partnership. 



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - COMMUNITY SUB-GROUP 
14 DECEMBER 2021 

(17:00 – 18:38) 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillors:   
 
 
 
Barry Causer (Public Health Lead for COVID Resilience), Kate 
Symons (Deputy Director for Transforming Primary Care 
Merton and Wandsworth), Julia Groom (Consultant in Public 
Health), Mohammad Hassan-Ally (Vaccination Equity Service 
Manager), Clarissa Larsen  (Health and Wellbeing Board 
Partnership Manager), Hetty Crist (Communications Manager) 
Amy Dumitrescu  (Democratic Services Manager) 
Bola Roberts (Democratic Services Officer) 
  
  

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Dr Mohan Sekeram. 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 19th October 2021 were 
agreed as an accurate record 
 
4 COVID-19 IN MERTON UPDATE  (Agenda Item 4) 

 
Situation Assessment Report 

 
The Director of Public Health presented the latest situation assessment report.  
 
The slides from this presentation are attached to these minutes.  
 
It was reported that infection rates were on the increase and rising steadily amongst 
younger people. Hospitalisations were steady and possibly lagging behind infection 
rates. The Omicron variant was accounting for an increasing percentage of cases, 
particularly in London. Members were asked to support the vaccination booster 
programme and the continuing ‘evergreen’ offer of vaccination. 
 
In response to questions from members on the reported shortage of lateral flow tests, 
the Director of Public Health gave assurance that what had been reported was a 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



temporary online issue and that lateral flow testing kits are in stock and could be 
collected from a variety of points, including Merton libraries and pharmacists. 
 
The Wilson and other vaccination sites are fully operational and teams were in place 
and mobilised. A huge number of people were being vaccinated in an operation that 
was continuing over the Christmas holiday. The Wilson was open seven days a week 
and Merton was fortunate in the way that PCNs and primary care colleagues had 
rapidly configured the service, slightly ahead of some other boroughs.  
 
The Chair thanked all for their efforts especially over festive period.  
 
Post COVID Syndrome 
 
The Public Health Lead for COVID Resilience reported that the steering group met 
regularly and was working through the data to understand the prevalence of Post 
Covid Syndrome (PCS), the needs of people experiencing it and then identify what 
can be put in place to address those needs and raise awareness. The intention was 
to report to the next HWBB Community Subgroup on PCS with a focus on equity. 
 
The Locality Executive Director Merton and Wandsworth added that the service is 
seeing more referrals than anticipated with widening take up, with further funding and 
review planned. 
 
5 HEALTH ON THE HIGH STREET (Agenda Item 5) 
 
 
The Public Health Lead for COVID Resilience outlined progress on the pilot having 
consulted with partners and the community. The pilot is planned to include: 
 

 Seven fixed fully resourced sites in Merton community libraries delivering 
services and prevention support. 

 Pop up sites that enable flexible services and settings. 
 Connect primary care networks to link into local and wider NHS services, 

developments and diagnostics hubs. 
 Recruitment of a project manager to lead the Health on the High Street 

programme. 
 Evaluate working with RB Kingston, who have a similar approach to Health on 

the High Street. 
 Work towards a National Institution of Health Research bid to evaluate the 

programme. 
 
Members spoke about health literacy and the opportunity to promote this via 
libraries.  Services should be based on the needs of local communities. A range of 
potential services were discussed including blood pressure monitoring, height and 
weight management, support for substance misuse and signposting to wider 
services. The idea is for specialists to come to local people, rather than the other 
way round.  
 
The importance of coordinating with the voluntary sector and existing service 
provision was stressed and the Public Health Lead for COVID Resilience reported 

Page 2



that he was working closely with partners building on relationships that have been 
strengthened over the recent months through the response to COVID. The project 
manager, once in place will further develop outreach and engagement work.  
 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Health and Wellbeing Board Community Subgroup 

Date: 1 March 2022 

Agenda item: 5 

Wards: All 

Subject:  Future of the Health and Wellbeing Board Community 

Subgroup 
Lead officer: Dagmar Zeuner, Director of Public Health 

Lead member: Councillor Rebecca Lanning, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 
and Public Health 

Forward Plan reference number:  

Contact officer: Clarissa Larsen, Health and Wellbeing Board Partnership Manager 

Recommendations:  

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board Community Subgroup are asked: 

A. To consider the future Options set out in point 4, and agree Option 3, for 1st March 
to be our final meeting and to stand down the Subgroup. 

B. That members of the Subgroup remain ready to be reinstated as a task and finish 
group, if and when considered necessary and requested by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report proposes that the HWBB Community Subgroup be stood down in light 
of the current status of the COVID-19 pandemic. It provides a short overview of the 
work taken forward by the Subgroup since August 2020. It also sets out options 
recommending that the Subgroup remain ready to be reinstated as a task and 
finish group where requested by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 

2. BACKGROUND 

The HWBB Community Subgroup was established in August 2020 in response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. Always intended as a time limited group, it was originally 
planned to meet for nine months. The Subgroup was initially designed to support 
the implementation of Merton’s Outbreak Control Plan, having oversight of 
communication, with a particular focus on protecting vulnerable communities.  

As the pandemic developed, and the disproportionate impacts on communities 
became apparent, the Subgroup increasingly focused on tackling inequalities 
highlighted and exacerbated by COVID-19. It provided oversight of engagement 
work exploring the experience of COVID-19 by different communities; to 
understand their lived experience and act on those insights. The Subgroup has 
specifically targeted vaccination equity and developing awareness of, and support 
for, those experiencing Post COVID Syndrome.  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



3. DETAILS 

Since it was established in August 2020 the Community Subgroup has overseen a 
proactive programme of work including:  

3.1 Engagement, Insight and Communications 

 Commissioning voluntary and community organisations, including Merton 
Mencap and BAME Voice, to engage with their networks to gain insight into the 
lived experience of COVID-19. Partners presented their findings to the Community 
Subgroup contributing to a greater understanding of COVID’s disproportionate 
impact on some communities. Subsequent actions include a Phase 2 programme 
valued at over £200k for VCS organisations to deliver community led projects, co-
create and share COVID-19 messaging and increase capacity for BAME 
organisations to be at the decision making table.  

  
 A comprehensive communications programme including webinars, virtual 
meetings and community fora - led by trusted clinicians and aimed at groups, 
including BAME communities, young people, parents, pregnant women and their 
partners, enabling an ongoing dialogue with communities.   

  
 Continuing development of the network of Community Champions and Young 
Adult Community Champions (YACCs) - 166 active Champions including 
councillors, front-line workers, clinicians and residents. YACCs work, including 
production of videos and posters targeting under-18s, was brought to the Subgroup 
by our Young Inspector member.  
 

 Most recently £485k of funding has been successfully secured to develop a 
further programme of COVID-19 Vaccination Community Champions.  

   
3.2  Vaccination Equity 
  
 Merton’s vaccination programme has continually evolved, learning and 
developing from experience to date. In May 2021, the HWBB Community Subgroup 
agreed the Vaccination Equity Plan, informed by insight work with communities. 
The plan is aimed at reducing barriers to access, promoting targeted 
communication and engagement, partnerships and governance and making best 
use of data and emerging information to ensure a strong focus on making sure no 
one is left behind.  
 

 Analysis of intelligence to monitor vaccination progress and develop greater 
understanding of those with less confidence in the vaccine, shaping our response 
including active promotion of the ’evergreen’ vaccination offer.    

  
 Roll out of the vaccination programme to key sites across the borough, 
supported by over 35 pop-up vaccination clinics in areas of low vaccine uptake and 
other settings including the Civic Centre, sports clubs, places of worship, local 
community centres, food banks and transport venues.  

  
3.3  Post COVID Syndrome 

 Roll out of the service and support model for Post COVID Syndrome, with a 
focus on equity. Recognising that some of those who suffered most through the 

Page 6

https://www.merton.gov.uk/system/files/Merton%20Vaccination%20Equity%20Plan%20.pdf


pandemic, and are now suffering from Post COVID Syndrome and developing 
access to appropriate clinical services, as well as community and self-management 
advice to support, recovery and rehabilitation. Pro-active promotion around Post 
COVID Syndrome in the community is also taking place, complementing the NHS 
approach to case finding, with new learning and iteration of the support offer all the 
time.  

 
3.4  Local Outbreak Management Plan  

 Published in April 2021, Merton’s Local Outbreak Management Plan (LOMP), 
provides an overarching plan for our response to COVID-19 setting out how we 
work with our partners at a local, regional and national level. Oversight has been 
led by the Community Subgroup, again with a particular focus on equity  

 
4.  PROPOSALS 
 

Though COVID is still with us, Omicron is causing milder infection and now R<1 
meaning the pandemic is shrinking and infections and outbreaks are reducing. The 
Government will publish its Living with COVID plan 21 February, due to revoke the 
mandate for self-isolation from 24 February, a month earlier than originally planned. 
However, as we move to a time of recovery, the impact and inequality being 
experienced by some of our communities remains pressing.  

It was always intended that the HWBB Community Subgroup be time limited. Initially 
planned to meet to March 2021, it was subsequently extended to September 2021 
and more recently to March 2022. 1st March 2022 is the final scheduled meeting of 
the Subgroup and three options are set out below: 

Option 1 In line with relaxation of national restrictions and current levels of 
infection that the HWBB Community Subgroup’s final meeting is 
1st March 2022 and it henceforth comes to a permanent close. 

Option 2 The HWBB Community Subgroup continues to meet and maintain 
oversight for a further six months and review the position again in 
September 2022. 

Option 3 The HWBB Community Subgroup stand down with its final 
meeting 1st March 2022. The core Health and Wellbeing Board 
then takes on specific oversight of vaccination equity, Post 
COVID syndrome and support for fair access to COVID-19 
therapeutics, with Subgroup members retaining readiness to 
stand up as a task and finish group, as considered necessary and 
requested by the core HWBB in future. 

 

It is recommended that members agree Option 3 which ends meetings of the 
Subgroup but retains capacity to respond to developments quickly with an 
established and committed group. 

Page 7

https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s39380/Merton%20LOMP%202021.pdf


The Health and Wellbeing Board will continue to focus on addressing health 
inequalities and promoting health equity as one of the key principles of the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy. This work will also contribute to the recently launched 
priorities of #Merton2030 which include: Supporting and caring for residents who 
are most in need, and promoting the safety and wellbeing of our communities; and, 
Making Merton a fairer, more equal place and supporting those on low incomes by 
tackling poverty and fighting for affordable housing. 

5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

Alternative options are set out under the proposals above. 

6. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

Members of the Community Subgroup are being consulted in this report and, if 
agreed, a similar report and recommendation will be made to the March meeting of 
the core Health and Wellbeing Board. 

7. TIMETABLE 

The Community Subgroup was proposed to be time limited and meet for a fixed 
period. 

8. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

N/A 

9. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

Merton Health and Wellbeing Board is a statutory committee of the Council 

10. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS 

The focus of the Community Subgroup and that of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
is on those vulnerable community groups and promoting health equity. 

11. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

N/A 

12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

N/A 

APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

Appendix I – Vaccination Equity Plan 

Appendix II – Merton’s Local Outbreak Management Plan (LOMP), 

 

Page 8

https://www.merton.gov.uk/system/files/Merton%20Vaccination%20Equity%20Plan%20.pdf
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s39380/Merton%20LOMP%202021.pdf

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting 14th December
	5 Future of HWBB Community Subgroup

